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PREFACE

This guide has been prepared as an intro-
duction to the architecture of Newton
Highlands and Waban, whose housing is
primarily the product of the Victorian era.
Included in this booklet are a history of
both villages, a brief guide to understanding
architectural design, and a review of the
most common architectural styles with
photographs of local examples.

This booklet is part of an ongoing project
to identify and study Newton’s architectural
heritage. Under the Newton Historical Pro-
erties Survey, structural inventories have
Eeen completed in Auburndale, Newtonville,
MNewton Corner, Nonantum, and West New-
ton. Based in part on information from the
Jackson Homestead's Newton's Older
Houses series, this inventory records the
date of construction, architectural style,
and provides a brief historical background
of each structure built prior to 1907. Copies
of these forms are on file at the Newton
Housing Rehabilitation Fund Office and at
the Massachusetts Historical Commission in
Boston. Booklets describing the history and
nineteenth century architecture of these

villages have also been published along with
walking tour brochures.

Many people have contributed time and
assistance during the course of this project.
They include several members of the Newton
Historical Commission, Larry Bauer, Barbara
Thibault, and especially 'I'heTma Fleishman
and Jean Husher whose efforts, guidance

and editing skills were sincerely appreciated.
Georgina Flannery, Mary Elizabeth Rubin,
and Susan Cain uly the Newton Free Library,
and Duscha Scott of the Jackson Homestead,
as well as the staffs of the Newton Housin
Rehabilitation Office, the City Clerk’s Office
and the City Engineers Office provided help-
ful assistance. Bruce Fernald as Project
Director, provided guidance during the struc-
tural inventory. Finally thanks are gratefully
extended to Gregory Deyermenjian for his
support during a?l phases of the survey.

Deborah Shea

Consultant

Newton Historical Properties Survey
1982
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Walnut Street at intersection with Floral Street, looking north, 1902
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THE GROWTH AND DEVELOPMENT OF
NEWTON HIGHLANDS AND WABAN

Developed largely during the late nineteenth
and early twentieth centuries, Mewton is an
attractive area of predominantly single-fami-
ly homes situated about eight miles west of
Boston, Its thirteen villages, with local shop-
ping areas, individual social amenities and
varying physical features, give the City a di-
verse character. The villages are a reflection
of a much earlier pattern of settlement which
led to the growth of several small farming
and mnnugcturin communities. Both New-
ton Highlands ;mdB Waban were among the
former until the advent of the Highland
Branch of the Boston and Albany Railroad
in the late nineteenth century,

Located to the south of Newton’s geograph-
ic center, the boundaries of Newton High-
lands have never been formally agreed upon;
the present L-shape having been arbitrarily
determined by lines drawn by the United
States Post Office. However, physical fea-
tures nriﬁinaﬂ}r influenced the extent of the
region’s development. The Great Meadow
lay to the East and to the West were the 150
acres of Alcock’s Swamp (a few still remain

in the Cold Spring Playground). Crystal

Lake, a Great Pond, still defines the north-
ern border, Known originally as Wiswall's
Pond after the first settler on its shore, by
1800 the lake was commonly called Baprist
Pond because the Baptists had their Meeting
House close by and used the pond for total
immersion baptisms. The name Crystal Lake
was apparently coined during the f;te nine-
teenth century by land dweﬁ:pﬂrs hoping it
would help to attract new residents to the
neighborhood. And indeed, the lake has for
years been an invaluable community resource;
swimming, sailing, fishing and skating are
popular activities enjoyed by many New-
tonians.

Located in southwestern Newton, Waban
remained sparsely settled until the construc-
tion of the Highland Branch of the Boston
and Albany Railroad (later known as the
“Circuit road”) in 1886. This direct link to
Boston encouraged many city businessmen
to acquire the spacious house lots then be-
coming available and build homes there.
Waban’s Victorian architecture, much of
which was professionally designed, is a taste-
ful legacy of this significant period of growth.



NEWTON
HIGHLANDS

Plan of Newton
Highlands, showing
boundaries of
Newton Historical
Properties Survey,
1978,




During the first decade of settlement in the
Massachusetts Bay Colony, special large
grants of land were made to persons of influ-
ence and importance. Among these was one
of 1,000 acres to John Haynes in 1634, This
grant, the earliest and largest recorded in
Newton’s history, included much of the area
which is present day Newton Highlands.
Haynes came from England aboard the Grif-
fin in 1633, was made an Assistant to the
General Court in 1634 and chosen Governor
of the Colony in 1635. In 1637 he followed
the Revcrcnc‘l{ John Hooker to Hartford,
Connecticut, where he died in 1654. His heirs
lived in Connecticut, and the bulk of the land
remained in their possession, undeveloped,
for several generations. Thus setttlement was
slow to come to Newton Highlands. During
the eighteenth century, however, farms
spreas out along the old colonial highways
which crisscrossed the village. The road from
Watertown to Dedham followed what are
now Centre and Dedham Streets, while Win-
chester Street ran southeast from the road
to Dedham to the “way past John Kenrick's
farm on the Charles River,” or Nahanton
Street. The Sherborn Road was formally laid
out by the County in 1685 and connected
Boston to the outlaying settlements to the
west. The road can Stiﬂg be traced today along
Jackson, Clark, Centre, Curtis, Ramsdell,
Woodward and Beacon Streets. Its circuitous
route was necessary to avoid both wetlands

and hills.

During the late eighteenth century many
roads were built throughout the Northeast to
facilitate the transportation of manufactured
goods and farmers’ produce to the seaport

markets. The Worcester Turnpike was one of
these. A private company, owned by a group
of Boston businessmen, was chartered in
1806 and the straight east-west turnpike be-
tween Boston and Worcester was opened in
1808. A tollbooth was sited below Eliot
Street opposite a wetland, making it difficult
for travelers to “shunpike™ or avoid paying
tolls. The company, however, paid few divi-
dends and the stockholders soon lost their
investments (of the 600 shares in the original
stock, few were owned by Newton residents).
The Turnpike was made a public highway in
1833 and given to the towns through which
it passed. Meanwhile, a small business com-
munity had developed at the tollbooth where
the turnpike met the local highways: the Ded-
ham and Sherborn Roads and Elliot Street.
Moses Craft's blacksmith and wheelwright's
shops and two taverns, Bacon’s (later known
as Cook’s) and Marean-Mitchell's, were sited
there. Nothing remains of these early enter-

rises except a slate milestone which can now
Ee seen at the end of Hartford Street, having
been moved there when Boylston Street was
widened.

Two aqueducts pass through Newton High-
lands. Though both were built to serve Bos-
ton, not Newton, they have had an impact
on land plans in the villages through which
they pass. The Cochituate Aqueduct, built
between 1846 and 1848, enters Newton just
above the Lower Falls, and passes through
Waban to Newton Highlands where it skirts
the southern and eastern edges of Cold
Springs Playground as it heads toward New-
ton Centre and the Chestnut Hill Reservoir.
It is now part of the Newton sewer system.

Newton Highlands
o= = e —— ___——=————— ——1]

COLONIAL SETTLEMENT
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Corner of Lincoln and Walnut
Streets, looking south, 1902

In the 1870, Echo Bridge was built to car-
ry the Sudbury Aqueduct across the Charles
River at Upper Falls, From here it crosses
Boylston and Woodward Streets and almost
meets the Cochituate as they run parallel to
each through the Highlands. As part of the
City’s linear open-space system, they are en-
joyed by hikers euru:i:l joggers, although many
private owners do not allow access necessi-
tating some detours.

As only a dozen or so families resided in
mid-nineteenth century Newton Highlands,
few houses have survived. Though exten-
sively altered, the Fogg House at 79 Wood-
ward Street (c. 1810) and the William Hyde
farm at 22 Hyde Street (1848-1851) reflect
the modest scale of housing constructed
during this early period.

AT
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Accessibility to Boston was a key factor in
determining Newton Highlands’ nineteenth
century development. Portions of Walnut,
Winchester (now Floral Street), Lincoln, and
Hyde Strects were laid out just after the
Charles River Railroad was constructed
through the neighborhood in 1852. A train
station was sites at the intersection of Walnut
and Lincoln Streets in anticipation of pending
suburban development. The stop was initial-
ly called Oak HiE, the early eighteenth cen-
tury name for the entire, sparsely settled
southern section of town. Mary E. Hyde, the
daughter of James F. C. Hyde (Newton’s

first Mayor) in Newton Highlands Forty

Years Ago written in 1916, describes it as

a “red station of one room leading from
which were a few living rooms for the sta-
tion agent and his famigl}r.”

However, the opening of the railroad did
not immediately lead to any significant de-
velopment. As the single track had been
built to serve the industries at Upper Falls,
commuter trains ran infrequently and were
often delayed. This was especially so during
the 1860’s when Norman C. Munson was
under contract to provide gravel for the fill-
ing in of Boston’s Back Bay. For more than
a decade, 40-car trains hau{ing gravel from
Needham were dispatched at 45-minute in-
tervals night and day, around the clock.

Newton Highlands’ first significant period
of growth occurred between 1871-1874,
when the Back Bay land-fill project was vir-
tually complete. The basic street system was
extended into a full scale subdivision and
several speculative developers were involved.

Mewton Highlands
_——

RAILROAD SUBURB

In 1871 Charles W. Farnham and Samson
Whittemore purchased a 38-acre tract of
land, originally a part of the Clark family’s
landholdings. The parcel was subdivided
employing a standard grid thought in the
nineteenth century to minimize street and
utility costs. A series of streets, Bowdoin,
Everett (now Chester), Columbus, Forest,
and Hillside, were laid out in parallels, north
of the village’s main street, Lincoln Street.
The land between was subdivided into a
total of 70 rectangular lots, each 1/4 to 1/3
an acre in size.

1874 Atlas of Newton, G. M. Hopkins Map Co.
. J.ﬂ@ﬁ:fr N d IH'., T ud;'p- I|I
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Newton Highlands
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While higher income Boston families had
long since established farms and summer
homes in the countryside, the advent of the
railroad made permanent, year round resi-
dence possible for the less privileged. Able
to commute to and from work in the city,
a broad cross section of working, middle,
and upper-class families was attracted to
Newton Highlands. With many acres of un-
developed open space, picturesque rock out-
croppings, and Crystal Lake, the area was
especially appealing as a healthful, rustic

&

138 Lincoln Street (1874)

environment in which to raise a family. By
1874, the nucleus of a community, bustling
with 521 residents, was firmly established.
Mary E. Hyde describes the period:

The ten years 1870-1880, were pheno-
menal in the growth of the village. At
first, it was Hie a western town i its
settlement, for into it came the riffraff
of society, a moving population. But
soon a better class came, who bought
land and homes for themselves. Several
of our Chautauquans came very early,
and our village has improved steadily
ever since, until now we have a beauti-

ful village, with a fine class of people.

Approximately 66 houses were constructed
during this initial boom period by several
local contractors. Among them was Samual
A. Walker, a prolific builder who was respon-
sible for constructing about 1/3. His houses
were wood frame and of modest size and
cost. There are many examples of his Man-
sard and Italinate style homes, including

93 Bowdoin Street (1874}, 6 Columbus
Street (1872), 3 and 19 Forest Street (both
1873), 138 Lincoln Street (1874), and
1090 Walnut Street (1871-1873).



Another important figure in the early devel-
opment of Newton Highlands was Moses
Crane (1833-1898). He settled here during
the late 1860’s, on a dozen acres of land he
had purchased just south of Crystal Lake.
At the time there were less than 20 families
residing within what are now the village
limits. With Charles W. Farnham, Henry
Billings as trustee, and the heirs of S. F.
Plimpton, Crane purchased a large tract of
land on speculation near the train station. In
1872, the group had Lake Avenue laid out,
which in these early land transactions was
called Essex Street. To facilitate the market-
ing of his land holdings, Crane constructed
several streets at his own expense. These
included Griffin Avenue (now Lakewood
Road), Norman Road, Station Avenue, and
portions of Berwick and Fisher Roads.

In addition to his activities as a speculative
developer, Moses Crane was well known as
an able inventor. He worked in close asso-
ciation with John M. Gamewell, for whom
he developed several devices relating to fire
and police telegraphic systems, among them
a novel fire alarm striker. In 1873, Crane
established a factory on Lake Avenue adja-
cent to the railroad tracks where about 60
workers were employed, among them sev-
eral local school boys whom he trained in
the highly skilled work needed to construct
the alarm systems, The Gamewell Fire Alarm
Telegraphic Company, a New York corpora-
tion organized in 1876, purchased Crane’s

business and patents which by this time num-

bered more than 40. The company moved to
new, more extensive quarters near the rail-
road station in Upper Falls in 1889. Crane

is credited with a large share of the success
of the fire alarms which were marketed na-
tionwide and in many foreign cities.

An active member in the political and social
life of the community, Moses Crane was as-
sociated with other prominent citizens in

the movement to secure a City Charter for
Newton in 1873, He represented the com-
munity as a Councilman for 2 years, and la-
ter in 1892, was elected as Assistant Assessor.
In 1872, he donated funds toward the con-
struction of a schoolhouse which was built
on Lincoln Street and he was a contributor
to the Congregationalist Society which was
also forming about that time. He was instru-
mental in organizing the Newton Highlands
Improvement Association and served as its
president for 13 years. It was this associa-
tion which was responsible for planting more
than 1,000 shade trees along the village
streets and for erecting the lovely fountain
which once stood in the center of a small
park at the intersection of Forest and Wal-
nut Streets. A major project of this organi-
zation was the campaign to eliminate the
dangerous railroad grade crossing at the vil-

lage center. Sadly, Moses Crane took his own
l?fg:cin 1898, following a prolonged period of
serious ill health.

Advertisement, 1875 City Directory

7

Newton Highlands
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MOSES CRANE

MOSES G. CRANE,
T'i:l'..!bl:I'IAI."II:.:};“:.I;-:I”MJI.'IImr

Machinery & Insiruments,
TOWER CLOCKS,

Al a% b b ol tmeall Machilorry made s snder,  Partiesar stteetlon ghes 1o Deslgnieg
sl Drrikcting Maghinery tor spathal [arpis,

Factory at Newton Highlands, Boston Address, 130 Washington 5L
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Advertisement, 1875 City Directory

LELTULS 413

A NEW

BAKERY

HAS BEEN OFERED AT

NEWTON HIGHLANDS,

LINCOLN, mear WALNUT 8T,
4. W. WENTWORTH, Jr., Proprietor.

Fresh Bread, Cakes, Pies, &e.

Tigaiws Brsed snd Nakid Basns Dvery Sundey Hormlsg.

Purutibad prompuy sd s vl s Sl

Im pemmsniiem with (s sbrs, we will sond s wsges Sy fs Mrwien
Cwnirs mal Wavwian Upper Falli, thma @i vt tha lchabdiauis

f Lhads villsges an sppsrunlily ta precors
FiuEn o i,

Bouten Prices GQuarantesd.

WE BOLLCIT 4 BHARE OF YOUR PATHOMADE.
3. W. WENTWORTH, Jr,

NEWTON HIGHLANDS

By 1874, Newton Highlands had grown large
enough to support a small collection of shops
and service businesses. A group of modest
wood frame commercial buildings was con-
structed along Lincoln Street later known as
Lincoln Square. Charles W. Farnham, never
one to pass up a good money-making oppor-
tunity, established a grocery business with a
livery stable to its rear on the site of the pre-
sent Stevens Block. Mary E. Hyde describes
the corner grocery store as situated on “a
knoll with a great elm tree in front of it. . .
the post office was in this store, and a family
iive‘fovcr the store, while two flights up,
was a hall, Farnham Hall. The hall was rath-
er shabby.” Samson Whittemore's Block,
later known as Newhall’s Block, with its
mansard roof handsomely clad in polychrome
Eattcmcd slate, was soon built uﬁ:pnsite Farn-

am’s Block. Mary E. Hyde recalls in her
history that it was in the “corner room
where Damarios Fruit Store now is, that we
children were sent to our first school. The
teacher’s desk was opposite the door, so she
could see the traffic outside easily, through
those large fine windows, but alas! for us
scholars. If we looked behind these out of
those same windows, we had to stay five
minutes after school . . . When the school-
room was too cold, we were taken over to
the parlor of our teacher, Miss Lourdon, on
the corner of Lincoln and Columbus St.”
The blocks provided space for several small
shops, including a dry and fancy goods shop,
a bakery, as wcfl as an apothecary (Drug
Store) and a boot and shoe store.

According to local accounts, the residents
of the new village were very dissatisfied with
Oak Hill as the name for their community.
It scemed especially inappropriate since the
village was situatcdy on a flar plain and Oak
Hill itself was some distance to the South-
east. Newtondale was the first name chosen,
but this, too, was unpopular although resi-
dents used it for a few years. The present
name was finally chosen in 1873, at a meet-
ing of villagers held specifically for that

purpose.

Suburban development south of the Worces-
ter Turnpike was less rapid. Although the
Highland Land Associates owned 24 acres of
land in the vicinity of Winchester Street and
several streets and house lots were laid out
h{, 1874, few residences were constructed.
The land was sold off in larpe tracts with ne
further development until the automobile
became a common form of transportation.
The fertile lands close to the Charles River
continued to be farmed until the close of
the century.



James F.C.Hyde (1825-1898), a descendant
of one of Newton’s founding families, was
an important figure in the development of
Newton Highlands as well as the City as a
whole. H}fcﬁ: served as town selectman for
16 years and presided over the annual Town
Meetings until Newton became a city. Dis-
tinguishing himself in both politcal and social
issues of his day, Hyde was the choice of all
parties to serve as the first Mayor and was
elected almost unanimously.

Agriculture was a special interest of James

F. C. Hyde. A member of the State Board
of Agriculture, he also served for several
years as the first president of the Massachu-
setts Horticulture Society. He was instru-
mental in organizing the Newton Horticul-
tural Society, and served a term as its presi-
dent. His greatest contribution, though, was
his determined effort to improve Newton’s
railroad service. The one-track Charles River
Railroad, later known as the New York and
New England Railroad, with its wooden rails,
unsafe bed, and inadequate service, had been
the source of bitter complaints by village
residents who commuted to Boston for their
daily employment. Partly attributed to this
malfunctioning railroad, development in
Newton Highlands was considerably slowed
after 1874. Active in the real estate business,
Hyde realized the necessity for better service.
He attempted to persuade the Directors of
the New York and New England Railroad to
sell the portion of track between Brookline
and Newton Highlands to the Boston and
Albany Railroad Company (which already
operated a branch line from Riverside through

Auburndale, Newtonville and Newton Corner
to Boston). This early effort was a failure.

A grnu,]: of prominent citizens, Hyde among
them, formed the Newton Circuit Railroad
Company and had a seven mile route sur-
veyed from Brookline to Riverside via New-
ton Highlands. In an effort to protect its
interests, the Boston and Albany Railroad
secured an agreement to lease the track. The
New York and New England Railroad Com-
pany later agreed to sell its branch to the
Boston and Albany for $415,000.00. Legal
difficulties ensued for a time, but eventually
the sale was closed. When the Boston and
Albany Railroad Company agreed to carry
out the project which was to extend track
out from Brookline via Newton Highlands
to a connection at Riverside with the north-
erly Boston and Albany line, the Newton
Circuit Railroad Company dissolved.

Henry Hobson Richardson, America’s most
famous nineteenth century architect, was
commissioned to design new train stations
to be located at Chestnut Hill, Newton Cen-
tre, Newton Highlands, Eliot, Waban and
Woodland. Only three stations remain today,
and of these, only one, the small Woodland
station, is a Richardson original. Construc-
tion of the station at Newton Highlands was
begun by September 1886, but a scarcity of
sone masons delayed its completion until
June of the next year. The opening coincid-
ed with the instalfatinn of four electric lights
at Lincoln Square. As the Newton Highlands
station was built after H. H. Richardson’s
death, it is believed to have been executed

Mewton Highlands
——

JAMES F. C. HYDE
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ELIOT STATION

by the succeeding firm, Shepley, Rutan, and

Coolidge. As is typical of Richardson’s work,

the station is constructed of rough-cut pink
granite with detail articulated in sandstone.

As well as precipitating development at Eliot
and Waban, the completion of the Highland
Branch in May 1886 renewed the demand
for real estate at Newton Highlands. M. F.
Sweetser describes the growth in his King's
Handbook of Newton (1889), ““On all siges
are heard the sounds of carpentry, where
new groups of houses are being prepared for
the incoming families of the next year and
the coming Secades.” In 1886 alone, 21
new houses were constructed in the village
and by the mid 1890’s, Farnham and Whit-
temore’s original 38-acre subdivision had
few undeveloped lots.

Benjamin Dickerman, a broker, played a key
role in the development of the flat plain
near Eliot Station, once thought to be the
bed of an extensive lake. Lincoln Street was
extended westward to provide access to
Eliot Station and the adjacent 12 acres of
land Dickerman acquired just prior to its
completion in 1887, The parcel was subdi-
vided into 48 house lots in the late 1880,
but it was not until the 1890's that the bulk
of houses were built along Harrison and
Dickerman Streets which had been laid out
perpendicular to Lincoln Street.

The station was named for the Reverend
John Eliot, the Apostle to the Indians who
converted Chief Waban and his Indian Tribe,
Nonantum, to Christianity in 1646. Accord-
ing to local legend, Eliot often preached
under the giant white oak tree which stands
close to the junction of Collins and Anna-
wan Roads in Waban.

| Lincoln Square (1893)



The Newton Highlands business district de-
veloped at the intersection of Lincoln and
Walnut Streets and close to the stylish new
railroad station. Constructed in 1888, the
distinctive Stevens Block, prominently situ-
ated at the intersection, is evidence of the
period’s prosperity. Architect Herbert C.
Mosely supervised the construction of the
Romanesque style block. The building has
been greatly altered, first by rebuilding after
a serious fire a few years af::er it was built,
and more recently by an attempt to modern-
ize it.

The Hyde School (1895), designed by Hart-
well and Richardson, an architectural firm
well known for its handsome school designs,
was named in honor of James F. C. Hyde,
thus acknowledging his great service to the
City at large and Newton Highlands in par-
ticular. The Neoclassical style addition to
the school was designed by architects Cool-
idge and Carlson of Boston. Built in 1907, it
also provided space for a branch library.

In his King’s Handbook of Newton (1889),
M. F. Sweetser describes the site of the New-
ton Highlands Congregational Church as
“pleasant and commanding . . . at the inter-
section of two of the principal streets,”
looking “benignantly over l:fl& drowsy ham-
let.”” Erected in 1876, it was important to
the community as a place where “the people
enjoy their harvest festivals and corn socia-
bles, and other pleasant reunions, besides
the usual religious observances of the old

Newton Highlands

PATTERNS OF DEVELOPMENT

Puritan faith.” Rebuilt in 1907 to accommo-
date a growing congregation, the present
structure was designed by architect George
F. Newton. ’

Two other congregations were formed in
Newton Highlands in the later years of the
nineteenth century and built noteworthy
structures. St. Paul’s Episcopal Church was
constructed in 1883 and moved to its pre-
sent site on Walnut Street from across the
street when it was enlarged in 1905, and the
Cline Memorial Methodist Episcopal Church,
later the Odd Fellows Hall, erected in 1893,
The latter building was designed by archi-
tects Clark and Crosby of Boston, The build-
ing was more recently used by the Elks as a
meeting hall. In 1978 it was converted into
five condominiums.

P AT o The Hyde School
\ e % ;u.

11



Newton Highlands
e e e —————

TROLLEY CAR ERA

During the 1890’s, hundreds of trolley lines
were built in cities and towns in metropoli-
tan Boston, providing transport for people of
all income levels. Several small independent
companies, often with the same owners and
officers and usually backed by real estate
promaoters, were granl:ed charters to construct
trolley tracks along the major roads which
linked Newton's vii\ages. In 1892, the New-
ton and Boston Street Railway Company
extended its line from Newtonville Square

to Mewton Highlands and later in 1898 to

12

Newton Upper Falls via Lincoln, Woodward
and Elliot Streets, The Commonwealth Ave-
nue Street Railway Company was granted a
charter to expand its service. This company
opened a branch line down Centre Street
from Newton Centre to the Highlands in
1899. The fare was standardized to five
cents or a “jitney” as the nickel was com-
monly called in 1903.

The Boston and Worcester Company was
anted permission in 1898 to construct a

e along the Worcester Turnpike provided
it widen the highway to 90 feet, contribute
to the cost of constructing a new lower dam
at Upper Falls, and maintain street lights
along the way. Running by 1903, this high-
speed, heavy-duty street railway was called
the Trolley Air Line, For a time it competed
successfully with the railroad, providing con-
venient commuter service to Boston and to
communities to the west of Newton as far
as Worcester. In addition, it was equipped
with freight cars to carry a variety of manu-
factured goods between Boston and Worces-
ter and the towns along the way. As the line
passed through Newton Highlands, the dan-
gerous street level intersection with the rail-
road tracks as they crossed Boylston Street
east of Hartford Street was avoided by the
construction of a high wooden trestle. This
was removed in 1906, when the railroad
tracks were depressed at Lincoln Square and
thence passed underneath Boylston Street.

By the turn of the century, an investment
og a nickel afforded residents of Newton
Highlands readily available transportation



across Newton north and south, east and
west, to Needham, to Waltham, to Welles-
ley, Watertown, Brookline and Brighton,
and to Norumbega Park on the Newton-
Weston line.

Eventually the many small, independent
street railway companies operating in New-
ton and other towns west of Boston were
merged into one new corporation, the
Middlesex and Boston Street Railway Com-
pany. Organized in 1907, the activities of
the Middlesex and Boston reached their peak
in 1913 when it operated 264 cars in twenty
cities and towns. Its decline, largely due to
the growing popularity of the automaobile,
began after World War L. In 1924, the com-
pany adopted a policy of bus substitution,
and by 1930, its last rail line—Lake Street to
Norumbega along Commonwealth Avenue—
ceased operation, ending an era in Newton.

The Newton Highlands commercial center
spread slowly along Lincoln and Walnut
Streets between 1910 and 1930. A few Vic-
torian mansions were destroyed as the center
expanded to its present size. Using Commun-
ity Development funds, this area has been
greatly upgraded in recent years.

The automabile had a decided effect upon
the village. During the 1920's, the majority
of residents in Farnham and Whittemore's
38-acre subdivision added “auto houses™ to
their backyards. The land south of Centre
Street, that is Boylston Road, Aberdeen
Street, and Rockledge Road, though sparse-
ly settled at the turn of the century, saw full
development by the 1920's. The land south
and close to the Worcester Turnpike (Boyl-

ston Street) was dotted with residences by this

time. To facilitate the heavier traffic flow to
and from Boston, this road was widened into
Route 9 during the 1930's. The multi-lane
expressway was elevated to the south of the
village center and entrance and exit ramps
were constructed. Several gas stations and
drive-in shopping centers now line that séction
of Boylston Street, reflecting post World War
11 growth. The village’s atmosphere, however,
is still derived from its fine collection of well-
prescnrcd Victorian architecture. Situated
along gracious, tree-lined streets, these build-
ings tell a story of a changing culture, techno-
logy, and taste which is essential to the iden-
tity of twentieth century Newton Highlands.
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Plan of Waban, showing boundaries of Newton Historical Properties Survey, 1978
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DEVELOPMENT PATTERNS

Waban’s widely varying terrain was a factor
which influenced patterns of development.
The village center is situated on a broad, low
plain. To the east, the old Alcock’s Swamp
separates the region from Newton Highlands,
Much of this once remote wetland has been
drained and filled, and was developed in the
early twentieth century making the boun-
dary between the two villages indistinct. In
contrast, west Waban is described thusly by
M. F. Sweetser in the King’s Handbook of
Newton (1889), “Rising from the groves of
pine and maple along the river, and the inter-
vening meadows, is a chain of bluffs, broken
in the most picturesque and often weird way
by natural g,rades ::3 amphitheatres.” The
late nineteenth century subdivision of this
area south of Beacon Street was laid out with
respect to its undulating topography.

According to a local account, Waban station
was originally to have been called “Hillside” el
and the Eliot Station “Waban.”” Though .
train schedules and tickets had evidently
been printed, William C. Strong, an early
Waban resident, and others were said to have
exerted pressure to change the names to
those at present. He had previously resided
at Nonantum Hill on the Newton-Brighton
line where Waban once had his wigwam and
where Reverend Eliot often preached.

o
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Strong’s Block, 1641-49 Beacon Street
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THE FARMING COMMUNITY

Waban was not settled until after 1680.
There could be several explanations for this
delay. One might be that the region was in-
conveniently far from the first meetin%]musc,
which, in the seventeenth century was locat-
ed at the corner of Centre and Cotton Streets
particularly as Alcock’s Swamp lay in be-
tween. For whatever reason, three of Waban's
first families were second generation colon-
ists: John Mason (1686), Henry Segar (1689)
and Eleazer Hyde (1700), while John Wood-
ward, Waban’s first documented settler, was
of the third generation,

In 1681, John Woodward (1649-1732) and
his young wife, Rebecca Robbins of Cam-
bridge, received 30 acres in Waban as a wed-
ding gift. Their old colonial house, located
at 50 Fairlee Road, is one of few known sev-
enteenth century residences remaining in the
city. Though surgst.mtiaﬂy altered, the house

Woodward House,
50 Fairlee Road
(photo courtesy of
Peter and Donna
Gumpert)
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illustrates several early construction tech-
niques. It is a 2% story wood frame structure,
built facing south. The steeply pitched seven-
teenth century roof was dismantled and re-
framed in the eighteenth century by insert-
ing the early framing members into new raft-
ers. Such reuse was common. The structure
was laid out with two rooms to a floor, sep-
arated by a massive central chimney block.
Though windows of the farmhouse are new-
er slicﬁng sash instead of casements, and the
door has been sidelighted (nineteenth cen-
tury), their off-center placement appears
original. Lean-to and wing additions, added
as space was required, give the house an
asymmetrical profile.

The house was occupied for close to 275

ears by eight generations of the Woodward
%'amily. John Woodward was actively in-
volved in the politics of Newton as were his
descendants. He served in a variety of posi-
tions such as fence viewer, tithingman, con-
stable, and selectman. In 1776 Deacon John
Woodward (1724-1801) was the moderator
of the town meeting which passed by unani-
mous vote the resolution that the Continental
Congress declare the colonies independent.
He subsequently fought in the Battle of Con-
cord though he was more than 50 years old.
Deacon E]gijah F. Woodward (1786-1845)
was Representative to the General Court
and Town Clerk from 1826 undil his death.
With W. E. Ward, he surveyed the area for
the 1831 map of Newton which is today an
invaluable historical resource. By 1874, that
section of the Sherborn Road between the
Worcester Turnpike and Beacon Street was
known as Woodward Street.



During Waban’s long agricultural period, four
large fgnrms developed at the intersection of
the Sherborn Road and a Town way. Laid
out in 1702 from the Staples farm, the new
road provided a more direct route to the
Meetinghouse in Newton Centre. As it was
necessary to avoid Alcock’s Swamp to the
East, the road ran along the present Beacon
Strect to Short Street, then north on Chest-
nut Street to Fuller and Homer Streets to
Newton Centre.

Deacon John Staples (16587-1740) came to
Newton about 1688, Early records indicate
he was living in Waban by the turn of the
century where he amassed a large 93-acre
farm northeast of the crossroads. The resi-
dence at 1615 Beacon Street is situated on
the site of his early farmstead. Though sig-
nificantly altered, it incorporates the foun-
dation, structural members and hardware of
this earlier residence.

Politically active, Deacon Staples held a vari-
ety of public positions and was Town Clerk
and Treasurer for many years. He was ap-
Foin:ed Mewton’s first schoolmaster in 1700,
or which he was paid 5 shillings per session.

As Staples and his wife were childless, the
couple raised several boys from other fami-
lies. One was Moses Craft who inherited the
farm. It is believed that Craft rebuilt the
Staples house, replacing it with one of the
then current style. He added an ell in 1769
which he sold to his son Joseph, a young
man with a growing family. Apparently
Joseph Craft had agreed to stay on the farm,
taking over its maintenance, and this was his

facher’s way of providing for three genera-
tions to live peacefully in one house.

Joseph Craft fathered 15 children, most of
whom lived to adulthood. Some left Newton
to settle in Maine, and others took up trades
other than farming. He and his wife contin-
ued to live on the farm long after they were
able to maintain it and various lots were sold
off from time to time to meet expenses and
taxes. Joseph Craft died in 1821 at the age
of 85, leaving no will and an estate seriously
in debt. At the auction ordered by the Judge
of Probate, Joseph's son, Moses Craft 11, a
blacksmith who lived nearby on the Worces-
ter Turnpike, was allowed to make the win-
ning bid of $5.50 for the house, barn, and a
large tract of land. In 1824 Moses Craft I1
sold the property to his cousin William Wis-
wall [1, It is believed that Wiswall was respon-
sible for the restyling of the house, giving it
its Federal ornament,

Much of the farmland was exceedingly rich
bottomland and, with good farming practic-
es, could be uaranmej to produce large
crops. Indeed, that part of the land, now the
Lincoln Playground, continued to be culti-
vated as a truck farm until after World War

I1. Wiswall was highly regarded for his pros-
perous farm until, in 1858 unable to main-
tain it any longer, he sold the property to
David Kinmonth, a wealthy Boston merchant.

Desiring a stylish summer estate, Kinmonth
had the house extensively remodeled, result-
iniin its present ap{rear.-mce. He clipped the
ﬁ le ends and the dormers, added several

y windows, extended the porches and
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squared off the L-shaped house by adding

a new oval diningroom to the north east
corner with an arched-ceilinged master bed-
room above. He lived to enjoy his summer
estate only a few years before he died in
1865. The property was then sold to another
Boston merchant, Edward Wyman.

This country farmhouse, one of the oldest
in the village and prominently located in its
center, serves as an important visual link to
Waban’s agricultural past.

— === 1615 Beacon Street,
Staples-Craft-Wisall House
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HYDE FARM
Southeast of the crossroads was the second farmhouse a few years later to H. Langford
of the four important farms, that of Eleazer Warren, the Dean of the Faculty of Architec-
Hyde. Hyde was the tenth son of one of ture at Harvard. Originally one room deep
Newton’s earliest and most prolific settlers, with double back chimneys warming the
Jonathan Hyde. Jonathan Hyde provided north, cold wall, the house has been substan-
well for his children, leaving each son a good tially enlarged. Warren remodeled the house,
sized parcel by both will and deed to insure adding a large ell which replaced a small shed-
that his wishes were carried out. In 1700, he roof extension. Another large addition at the
assigned 30 acres on the Sherborn Road to rear and a side porch were added in the 19307,
his son Eleazer who added to his holdings All additions have been well-planned, echoing
by buying 38 more. He, in turn, willed the the house's original Georgian style.

entire estate to his only son, Eleazer, ]r.
The property passed out of the Hyde family
when Eleazer died in 1770, his wife and two
children having predeceased him.

Edward Wyman, who had previously ac-
quired the Staples Farm, purchased the old
Hyde farmhouse which today stands at 401
Woodward Street in 1866. T‘i;re_e years later
he sold both farms to his brother Morrill
Wyman, a Harvard professor, who super-
vised them from Cambridge. Among other
farming experiments he had black and white
mulberry trees planted, hoping to raise silk-
worms to supply the local silk industry with
cocoons. Unfortunately, only the mulberry
trees could survive the harsh New England
winter.

The Eleazer Hyde farm was sold to real estate
developers Charles J. Page and Frederick H.
Henshaw in 1886, They in turn sold the old

Eleazer Hyde farmhouse, 401 Woodward Street
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THE COLLINS FARM

The Collins Farm was situated to the south-
west of the crossroads. In 1775 Matthias
Collins 11, a blacksmith from Watertown,
purchased 100 acres adjoining the Wood-
ward Farm on Sherborn Road from Joseph
Craft. Matthias I1I, his only son, inherited
the estate and in turn willed portions of it
to his three sons, Frederic A., Edward J. and
Amasa, when he died in 1855. The Collins
estate by this time embraced 200 acres in
Waban. This section of Beacon Street came
to be known as the “Collins Neighborhood”
because of the row of family houses. Only
the house of Frederic Collins at 1734 Beacon
Street remains, a distinctive, Greek Revival
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style residence which was built about the
time of his marriage to Amelia Revere in
1847.

The Collins brothers were active in local
affairs as their father had been. Edward, a
respected businessman, served as the Trea-
surer of the town for 21 years, as a County
Commissioner, and as a member ot the State
Legislature. In addition, he was the Treasur-
er of the Newton Savings Bank and a Direc-
tor of the Newton National Bank, His house,
which once stood at 1686 Beacon Street,
was occupied by the Pillsbury Preparatory
School for Boys and somewhat later by the
Besse Sanitorium before it was demolished
in 1935 and the land subdivided.

Frederic Collins and his brother began a

glue factory on 5 acres of land (at the end
of Gould Road) adjacent to the Charles
River. At the time there were few glue mak-
ers in this country, and fish and bone glues

“Elmwood,” Edward Collins estate,
1686 Beacon Street (demolished 1935)



were as yet unknown. The enterprise was
evidently profitable since by 1855 it had
expanded to include three f{:cmrics. Soon

after the death of Edward Collins, in 1879,

the business was discontinued.

The glue business was not the first industrial
enterprise in Waban, There was a small but
significant weaving industry throughout the
eighteenth century. John Staples, Moses
Craft, Eleazer Hyde, and John Woodward,
among others, were all professional weavers.
Fulling mills were located nearby at both
Upper and Lower Falls to finish the hand-
woven cloth, Hand weaving was displaced
here, as in England, early in the nineteenth
century with the introduction of power
looms.

Advertisement, 1868 City Directory

FREDERIC A. COLLINS,

GLUE MANUFACTURER,

BEACON ST., NEAR WOODIWARD,
REWTON UPPER FALLS.
Higlest Cash Prices paid for Hide Seraps.

In 1837, the Poor Farm was moved from
Auburndale to 40 acres of land north of the
crossroads. Prior to its establishment, New-
ton’s poor were supported by the town and
boarded out to the lowest bidder. Provisions
for them are recorded as far back as 1711
when donations were collected at the annual
Thanksgiving Church Service. The money
was distributed by the Selectmen, acting as
Overseers of the Poor. By 1731, a workﬁouse
was established in Auburndale. Increasing
land values in the mid nineteenth century
coupled with the problem of unruly wards
necessitated its removal to the “backwaters,”
as Waban was regarded at the time. In 1900,
and for similar reasons, the City was per-
suaded to relocate the Poor Farm. It was
moved to a still more remote area on lower
Winchester Street, a 35-acre lot which ex-
tended to the Charles River. The Waban build-
ing was destroyed in 1902, and much of its
farmland now makes up the Angier School
playground.

As few residences have survived Waban’s long
agricultural era, it is important to include the
Bartlett Farm. The house was built as a one-
room half house (visible as the southerly
third of the structure) about 1736, the year
of Ebenezer Bartlett’s marriage to Anne Clark.
Later it was doubled in size to accommodate
the Bartlett’s growing family, eventually
totalling seventeen children. The house is
unusually wide because a one-room ell was
added to its northerly end. The house was
moved to 15 Winnetaska Road from a site
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PINE SCHOOL FARM

about 200 yards away in 1915, and carefully
renovated.

Ebenezer Bartlett served the town in a varie-
ty of lesser positions such as hayward, high-
way surveyor, and constable. He was certi-
fied as an Antipedobaptist at a time when
sects outside the established church were
frowned upon. The family landholdings
were vast and came to include close to 200
acres by 1800,

The Pine School Farm was established in
1864, by the Children’s Aid Society of Bos-
ton. Situated at the intersection of Chest-
nut and Fuller Streets, the farm provided a
home for wayward boys under criminal
prosecution in Boston, as well as temporary
housing for vagrants and destitute children.
M. F. Sweetser sums up the circumstances
of the school in his King’s Handbook of
Newton (1889),

More than 500 boys, between the ages
of 8 and 13, have been rescued from the
slums of the metropolis, and brought out
here, where the pure air and good associa-
tions of this upland home are quick to
sweeten the hard, surly, pallid expression
of the city poor. Besides receiving many
of the lacking elements of a common
school education, the lads are trained in
singing and in carpentry, and more than
all else, in the partical work of farming,
so that after a year and a half of disci-
pline and instruction, they are sent out
to work on farms in New England and
the West.

f= The Pine School Farm
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While land sales were booming elsewhere in
Newton at the beginning of the 1880’s, Wa-
ban, with less than 20 houses, remained
sparsely settled. Although Chestnut Street
had been extended to the Upper Falls and
Beacon Street (between Newton Centre and
Chestnut Street) had been laid out by mid
century, accessibility was still poor. In the
1870’s there had been some speculation in
land, prompted by talk of extending the rail-
road west of Newton Highlands. However,
two proposals came to nothing before the
Boston and Albany agreed to construct the
Highland Branch. One, the Hoosac Tunnel
or North Western Railroad, was surveyed
from Brookline to Riverside via Oak Hill,
South Newton Highlands, Upper Falls, and
Waban. The other, by the Brighton and
Newton Railroad, was to connect Newton
Lower Falls via Waban, Cold Springs City
and Newton Centre to Boston. In anticipa-
tion of the latter, the Nonantum Land As-
sociates purchased and subdivided the 76
acre Varick Estate at the corner of Washing-
ton and Beacon Streets into 195 small build-
ing lots. The subdivision and the proposed
railroad are shown on the 1874 City Atlas,
but were never carried out because of the
nation-wide economic depression which had
a serious impact locally.

As with Newton Highlands, Waban’s real
suburban growth began with the completion,
in 1886, of the Highland Branch of the Bos-
ton and Albany Railroad which connected
the villages in the south part of Newton to
the main line at Riverside. Waban Station
was built near the old crossroads (Beacon
and Woodward Streets) to one of the last

designs of H. H. Richardson. Several individ-
uals helped to bring about this important
development, among them James F. C.
Hyde, Samuel Hano, Edward L. Collins,
William Dresser and William C. Strong.
Boston-based land developers Charles J. Page
and Frederick H. Henshaw bought the old
Eleazer Hyde Farm from Mﬂl‘l‘iﬁ Wyman in
1886 and subdivided the property into 87
house lots fronting on Beacon, Chestnut and
Woodward Streets, and on Wyman, Plainfield
Streets and Pine Ridge Road which they had
laid out. The plan of the subdivision filed
with the City of Newton includes a diagram
of the route of the new Circuit Railroad, for
Page and Henshaw used copies of this to im-
press potential customers with the conven-
ience of the frequent trains both to Boston
and to other Newton villages.

Edwin P. Seaver, Superintendent of the Bos-
ton Public Schools, joined Waban’s land |
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Waban

speculation boom and acquired 25 acres con-
tiguous to that owned by Page and Henshaw.
He had the land subdivic‘{ed into 60 Y% acre
house lots and several new streets laid out.

In 1889, the undulating terrain of the Var-
ick Estate, together with the adjoining 26-
acre Carlton Estate and the 200 acres belong-
ing to the Collins family, was laid out by
Ernest Bowditch (the well-known Civil En-
gineer) into a complex of winding roads and
broad frontage lots, one half to several acres
in size. The Cochituate Aqueduct is an im-
portant component of this creative design.
Waban Avenue was laid out on both sides of
it, while cross streets sectionalize it into

1895 Atlas of Newton
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pleasing, round and oval, treed islands. Bow-
ditch was often hired as a surveyor by Freder-
ick Law Olmsted and was influenced by his
concept that one should never be able to look
straight down a road for any distance, the
road should bend so that the vista would
change as one moved along,

Wwilliam C. Strong's new farm was 93 acres,
extending from his house on Beacon Street
easterly to Chestnut Street, and included
Moffat Hill, a drumlin characterized by its
elliptical shape and rounded peak. Formed
during the glacial period, its hard-packed
slopes are the gradual accumulation of clayey
till gathered into a sticky mass beneath the
moving ice sheet, a common phenomenum
in the Boston area. According to local tradi-
tion, the name of the hill is derived from a
squatter named Moffat who once made his
home there. Strong, a well-known nursery-
man, planted fruit trees on the southern
slope and devoted the other, more level
ground, to hardy trees, shrubs, roses and
vines. He was a incwlcdgenbie authority on
raising fruit trees and wrote several publica-
tions on the subject, among them, Fruit
Culture. He advertised his nursery business
in the local City Directory and offered free
catalogs of his varied stock to potential cus-
tomers. Active in securing the rignt of way
needed through Waban to expedite the con-
struction of the Highland Branch, William
Strong, too, intencﬁzd to profit from its con-
struction. He had Windsor Road laid out as
a pleasant country lane, bordered by flowers
and winding to the summit of Moffat Hill
where he offered handsome house lots for
sale. King's Handbook of Newton (1889),



extols the view from Moffat Hill: “From

the crest of the gracefully rounded hill, situ-
ated among the pastures and groves, one gains
a charming view over many tall spired villages,
the picturesque hills of Waltham and Welles-
ley, bits of the distant mounts Wachussers
and Monadnock, with parts of Boston and
the turquoise painted Blue Hills of Milton.”

A number of glowing advertisements by
various Waban land developers appeared in
the 1889 and 1891 editions of the Newton
City Directory. These touted the commodi-
ous size of building lots, idyllic settings and
the convenience ot transportation to Boston
only 10 miles away, with 30 daily trains.
“Homes for the merchant, banker and cler
were offered at prices ranging from §10,000,
quickly sold ancr built upon.

James F. C. Hyde entered the Waban real es-
tate market during the late 1880’s by an-
nouncing the sale of 130 house lots in a large
advertisement taking up half the front page
of The Newton Graphic. According to a
local history, 53 lots were sold off almost
immediately.

By 1888, Waban’s population had grown
from less than a dozen families to twenty-
six. Ten new and stylish residences had been

built by 1889 and half of these were design-

ed by H. Langford Warren, a local architect
well-known in Boston. Again, according to
M. F. Sweetser's King’s Handbook of New-
ton, the design of these residences “has
made a deep impress on the village of Wa-
ban, in the very dawn of its existence.”
This is E\"idﬂl‘l?}" true for several line-cut
drawings and photographs of these resi-
dences, 787 Chestnut Street (1888), 102
Windsor Road and 141 Woodward Street
(also 1888) illustrate the text of his book.

Advertisements,
1891 City Directory

Waban
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VILLAGE CENTER

Waban's village center developed close to

the railroad station at the old crossroads.
Through the efforts of the Waban Improve-
ment Society and Edward L. Collins, a real
estate developer, Waban's first commercial
block, Waban Hall, was constructed in 1890,
The block has also been known as Collins
Hall or Fyfe Block, after a grocery store
which was located there for many years. The
Shingle style building was df.".r,ignf:d}r to accom-
modate several shops at the street level and

a community hall on the upper floor. It was
here that the Waban Improvement Society
met for some years, local children first at-
tended public school, and where the Union
Church held its first services until it, too,
could erect its own building. A Chinese laun-
dry and a branch of Moulton’s General Store
in Newton Highlands were first to rent shops.
Although significantly altered, the structure
is still standing and remains an important
part of Waban's small commercial center.

The Waban Improvement Society, organized
in 1888, undertook to guide the clewﬁnp-
ment of the village and to represent the de-
sires and concerns of the community to the
city government. It continues to play this
role very effectively even now, and has made
a significant contribution in maintaining
Waban’s attractiveness. Among other early
activities, it was responsible for planting
trees along the streets, for constructing side
walks and having them plowed in the winter-
time, for obtaining the large playground at
Angfer School along with its tennis courts,
and for insisting that the telephone wires be
placed underground in the vili:gc commer-
cial center.
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By 1891 the number of daily trains had in-
creased to 38, stimulating further develop-
ment at Waban. The nucleus of a community,
its streets lined with Shingle style, Medieval
and Colonial Revival residences so much in
vogue at the end of the nineteenth century,
was emerging near the railroad station.
Waban’'s first school, the Roger Walcott
School, was a small, two-story, Shingle style
building erected in 1891, near the present

Angier Schoal, to accommodate the growing
number of children in the village.

William C. Strong commissioned the firm of
Bacon & Hill, arc%ﬁtects (Lewis H. Bacon
and Clinton Hill were both Waban residents)
to design a building to accommodate several
village stores with good-sized apartments
above. The distinctive Dutch style block was
completed in 1897, prominently sited in the
square at 1641-1649 Beacon Street. A ren-
dering of its design appeared in the October
31, 1896 edition of American Architect and
Building News.

The Church of the Good Shepherd has an
interesting history. The structure was origi-
nally owned by the Waban Church Corpora-
tion, a private group composed of members
of the Waban Christian Union and the Waban
Improvement Association who realized the
village's need for some sort of organized reli-
gion. The corporation was formed with the
understanding that services could change
from time to time as the members might
desire. The land was given jointly by William
C. Strong and the City of Newton and the
Medicualg Revival style church was designed
by William F. Goodwin, who, as a charter



member of the group, donated his skills, The
church’s furnishings, among them a Memorial
Window by Tiffany and a fifteenth century
cathedral’s lamp, as well as a farmer’s stone-
wall for the foundation were also donations.
Reverend William Hall Williams was engaged
as the rector and the first services were held
on Christmas Day, 1896. Williams leased the
church for a yearly fee of $200.00, and
organized the present Episcopal Parish. In
1907 the Church Corporation transferred
the property to the parish.

Waban had two private schools. The Charles
E. Fish School for Boys opened in 1895, in
what had been the Edward Collins house at
1686 Beacon Street. The barn was used as
EFymnasium and by the local Women's

ub, while the house of Frederic A. Col-
lins (1734 Beacon Street) was converted in-
to a dormitory, Eliot Hall, and that of real
estate developer Samuel Hano at 152 Waban
Avenue became Nonantum Hall. The house
at 34 Collins Road was a fraternity house
for students at the school. From 1897, the
Windsor Hall School for Girls was held in a
reconditioned barn which had belonged to
William C. Strong,

Waban's growth progressed steadily. The
larger developments in west Waban and
south of Beacon Street, though sprinkled
with residences in 1907, were thickly sertled
during the next decade. Large tracts of farm-
land north of Beacon Street (in west Waban)
were purchased, subdivided into house lots,
and built upon. The old Bartlett farm was
developed at this time and the farmhouse
(originally south facing) was turned 90%and

moved to its present site at 15 Winnetaska
Road. It was not until shortly after World
War 11 that a portion of Alcock’s Swamp
north of Beacon Street was drained, filled,
subdivided, and built upon. A new school
was built on the south side of Beacon Street
on filled in swamp land. Little open space is
now left in Waban as a result of its steady
development, only an isolated lot here and
there. Like Newton Highlands, the dominant
characteristic of this vi.%!age is its attractive
architecture.
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Accident in front of 1717 Beacon Street
(photograph dated April 16, 1933)
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Waban possesses a significant proportion of
residences designed E; architects. In con-
trast, architects were responsible for only
the largest and most complex of Newton
Highlands buildings, primarily its churches
amgi most elaborate houses, Designs for the
majority of Newton Highlands residences
were the product of local builders and con-
tractors. This is not to imply that the local
carpenter-builder was incapable of perform-
ing work of a relatively high level of sophis-
tication. Essentially a craftsman, he was
highly competent in practical matters like
framing systems, which during the nine-
teenth century included not only the build-
ing’s basic internal structure, but also the
complex roofline shapes and curving projec-
tions of the Victorian era.

The builder participated fully in the design
process. In addition to new developments
in framing technology, he was required to
absorb a rapid succession of architectural
styles, adjusting them to both the taste and
pocketbooks of his clients. To accomplish
this, he borrowed from designs that had
been successful for other builders, or con-
sulted an architectural pattern book (Figure
1). These handbooks ofgsamplc floor plans
(Figure 2), house designs and ornamental
trim were widely pubﬂhed by architects and
builders throughout the nineteenth century.
Often a builder and potential homeowner
reviewed these books together, selecting ele-
ments from several illustrations to be incor-
porated into a new design.

Wood was the most abundant and inexpen-
sive building material of the nineteenth

century and was used for most of Newton
Highlands’ and Waban’s residences. It was
used in the internal structure, as weather

proof skin for the exterior, and as ornament
throughout the building. In the early 1800’s

wood was fashioned by relatively primitive
saws into linear shapes, With the introduc-
tion of more complex woodworking ma-
chines in the mid-nineteenth century, thou-
sands of board feet of intricate wood trim
were easily produced in a variety of fanciful
scalloped, scrolled, curved and twisted
shapes (Figure 3).
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THE DESIGN PROCESS

Figure 3. Machine-sawn architectural ornament

Creating a house design involved a number
of limiting factors. Economic constraints im-
posed by the income of the client, for exam-
ple, reduced the design options of the build-
er or homeowner. Speculative builders who
constructed housing for an unknown buyer
were even more restricted in their choices.
Limiting their capital risk, this class of build-
er frequently selected conservative designs
in a few popular styles that had already
found acceptance among potential home-
owners.

Cultural factors played a determining role

in the exterior appearance of a house as well.
In every age and culture there have been
shared perceptions of how a home should
look and function. Although taste in archi-
tecture is tied to personal experience, edu-
cation and social status, cultural factors
strongly influence the collective set of ima-
ges of what is felt to be a beautiful or appro-
priate house in a particular era. During the
nineteenth century, preferences in a:ciitcc—
tural design were expressed by ornately

Hd
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decorated houses that reflected a series of
rapidly changing fashions or styles.

The kinds of rooms a house should have
were similarly culturally determined. Victor-
ian homeowners, for example, had a more
formal attitude toward outsiders than mod-
ern families. In the nineteenth century, en-
tertaining space was often divided into a
formal parlor reserved for visitors and a
separate sitting room for family intimates.
These two functions were combined during
the twentieth century to form the modern
living room.

Many Newton Highlands houses were cus-
tom built in this manner, with the owner
playing some role as entrepreneur. Samuel
A. Walker was one such builder who was ac-
tive in the early phase of the village’s subur-
ban development. He at first built his houses
one after the other, occupying one while in
the process of building the next. When the
new residence was complete, Walker moved
his family there and sold off his former
house, presumably at a small profit. This
seemingly unuqu practice was actually
common.

Walker's residences are 2% story clapboard
structures with both Italianate and Mansard
detail. He apiliﬂi ornament very sparingly,
using simple brackets at the eaves, cornices
over the windows visible from the street,
and sidelights at the front doors. The plans
for these homes were derived from architec-
tural pattern books featuring moderately



priced designs. The residence at 6 Columbus
Street is a Walker house, constructed in 1872
and sold for $3,000.00,

While Walker and other builders such as
Charles Pottle, J. C. Newcomb, and W. B.
MecMullin were responsible for many of the
houses ~::-::+r15truv:l:n:ts3 in Victorian Newton
ighlands, specific attributions are extreme-
ly difficult. Building permits, the most relia-
ble source of information on a house’s build-
er, cost, and date of construction, are not
available until 1912, Records such as blue-
Erints or contracts were rarely kept in a
ouse as it changed owners over the years.

William C. Richardson (not to be confused
with Henry Hobson Richardson) was one of
very few Boston architects known to have
worked in Newton Highlands, He was a part-
ner in the firm of Hartwell and Richardson
which was responsible for the designs of sev-
eral prominent buildings in the City. The
Hyde Grammar Schqu(lBQS} was designed
by the firm and constructed at a cost ulgn
$50,000.00. The old High School, the Bige-
low School, Mason and Horace Mann Schools,
(the latter of which is a close variation of the
Hyde School plan) were also designed by the
firm. All of the schools have been destroyed
except the Hyde School which has been
severely damaged by fire (April 1981),

Herbert C. Moseley, supervising architect
of the Stevens Block (1888) also designed
the house at 263 Lake Avenue (1884), Gur-
don R. Fisher designed several residences in
the neighborhood, among them 28 and 32
Lakewood Road (1892, 1893 respectively).

H. Langford Warren, William F. Goodwin,
Lewis H. Bacon, and Clinton Hill were archi-
tects known to have designed both public
buildings and private residences in Waban,

H. Langford Warren, a well-known architect
and Dean of Faculty of Harvard’s Architec-
ture Department, was commissioned by real
estate developers William C. Strong, Charles
J. Page, and Frederick H. Henshaw, to design
several of Waban’s first houses. 787 Chestnut
Street, 102 and 196 Windsor Road, and 389
and 414 Woodward Street, all built in 1888,
are representative of his stylish, innovative

designs.

The house at 658 Chestnut Street, Waban
(1888) and the Medieval Revival Church of
the Good Shepherd on Beacon Street (1896)
are attributed to William F. Goodwin. Lewis
H. Bacon of the firm, Bacon and Hill is cre-
dited with the design of two residences on
Chestnut Street, No. 627 {1892) and No.
703 (1889), as well as the distinctive Dutch
style Strong Block (1896). Prominently situ-
ated in the village center, the well-preserved
block sustains a country ambience, very
much a part of Waban’s Victorian past. Clin-
ton Hill, also a partner in Bacon and Hill, de-
signed a residence for himself at 63 Windsor
Road (1903). The firm is also credited with
the design of the Medieval Revival style
house at 99 Pine Ridge Road (1897). It is
interesting to note that because Waban was
not developed until after 1886, the bulk of
its architecture reflects later suburban styles
that of the Shingle, Medieval and Colonial
Revival styles. There are no Mansard, Italian-
ate, Gothic, nor Stick style residences in
Waban.

3
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A GUIDE TO VICTORIAN STYLES

The completion of the Circuit Railroad in
1886, not only contributed to the growth

of the small community at Newton High-
lands, but also encouraged development of
the hinterlands to the west, specifically Eliot
and Waban, These railroad suburbs were es-
sentially small towns, tied through its resi-
dents to the aspirations, values, and lifestyles
of a sophisticated urban center, yet in ambi-
ence and appearance were similar to a coun-

try village.

An essential feature of the picturesque sub-
urb of the mid and late nineteenth century
was a generous house lot planted with orna-
mental gardens and specimen trees. A curvy-
ing drive, its entrance marked by posts, led
to the main door of the house and lots were

Figure 4.
Newton Highlands:
68 Hyde Street, 1883
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fenced with low stone walls. Large lawns
and yards at several Newton Highlands and
Waban estates succumbed to pressure for
development and were subdivided into
smaller house lots in the late nineteenth
century, The subdivision of the 200 acre
Collins estate together with the contiguous
Carlton and Varick estates at Waban is a
notable example.

The term “style” in architecture refers to

the characteristic features of buildings erect-
ed in a certain period. Understanding stylistic
trends can provide insight into the relation
of the homebuilder to his time and into his
expression of “contemporary™ taste. Archi-
tectural style also may indicate the approxi-
mate date of a building’s construction and
the development pattern of a specific

neighborhood.

The typical suburban house was wood frame
in construction, like America’s earlier farm-
houses and village dwellings, but designed
with an imposing street facade and front en-
trance. A trend toward picturesque architec-
ture, first appearing in the 1840’s, coincided
with the development of the suburban house
form. Featuring a dramatic set of images
that included jagged silhouettes, prominent
rooflines and a profusion of ornate wooden
decoration, “picturesque’™ buildings were
felt to be particularly appropriate for scenic
rural settings,

Each style has its own system of ornament,
and a distinct set of features that includes
not only decorative detail, but also the pro-
portion of a building’s parts as they relate



to the design of the whole. In different
styles, for example, the roof could be low
and insignificant or it might dominate the
entire composition.

New styles often borrowed several elements
from their predecessors. A transition period
of five to ten years that included features of
both was commeon as designers and their cli-
ents grew accustomed to the latest swle.
Often the decorative detail of a new fashion
was first tried on the inside of a house, with
the exterior design completely in keepi

with the Dider,ﬂrfgre far?:iliar};'ﬂrms. IPnEme
cases a much earlier building was remodeled
in a new style, or a porch and different orna-
mental trim added to bring it up to date.
The Italianate style house at 163 Lincoln
Street, Newton Highlands {Fi_%ure 5), for
example, was built in 1872, The imposing
round corner tower and spacious semi-circu-
lar verandah are Queen Anne elements add-
ed during the 1880’s when the fashion for
picturesque architecture was at its height.

Underlying the sequential development of
nineteenth century styles were several basic
trends. Historicism, or an interest in the

architecture of an earlier period, was a pre-
dominant characteristic nif]' nineteenth cen-
tury architecture. This was particularly true
of the Victorian era, roughly corresponding
to the reign of Queen Victoria (1837-1901),
when a succession of styles evoked a highly
interpretive, often romantic view of the past.
Historicism, which began in America wil:fl
an interest in the classical temples of ancient
Greece, waned briefly in the 1880°s with the
more imaginative, less historical designs of
the Queen Anne and Shingle style, and re-
emerged at the end of the century with an

Figure 5. Newton Highlands:
163 Lincoln Street, 1872,
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idealized version of American colonial
architecture,

Another trend, which came full circle as it
developed over the century, was a gradual
change in the massing, or assemblage of
forms in residential architecture. The com-
pact, crisply-defined outline of the early
1800’s gave way in the period between 1840
and 1890 to more picturesque designs with

Figure 6. Waban: “Hillcrest,” 215 Windsor Road, 1891 (destroyed)

broken silhouettes and a complex array of
competing shapes. In the late nineteenth
century, house forms reverted back to the
carlier, self-contained rectilinear building

types.

Most styles were imported from England,
reaching this country through the enthu-
siaam"::? the European traveler, the architect
who studied abroad, or architectural maga-
zines and books. New fashions were first
experimented with in large, sophisticated
urban centers like Boston, and then gradual-
ly proceeded in a pattern of geographical
cﬂspnrsinn to smal?er cities and towns, and
finally, to rural farming areas. As the popu-
lation of Newton HighFands and Waban
became increasingly Boston oriented, the
usual five to fifteen year time period be-

tween a styles introduction and acceptance
here diminished.

In a similarly orderly progression, architec-
tural styles al!ow:cr a sequence tied to socio-
economic status. Generally, new architectural
fashions grew less complicated as housing be-
came more modest, until at che workingman's
level, they were evoked by a single ornamen-
tal feature such as the wooden bracket.

Descriptions of the eight Victorian architec-
tural styles most prevalent in Newton High-
lands and Waban, and illustrations of repre-
sentative examples of both the more complex
and simpler local interpretations follow,



The Greek Revival style first appeared in
England where new discoveries of ancient
temples had heightened the interest of both
architects and scholars in Greek civilization.
In this country the Greek Revival style
achieved the status of a national ar—::i;ritecturc.
becoming predominant for commercial blocks,
civic and religious buildings, residences, and
even utilitarian structums%ike carriage barns.

The widespread appeal of the Greek Revival
style lay in the ofEen expressed sentiment
that Americans were the spiritual successors
of ancient Greece. This feeling was apparent
not only in the country’s building stock of
the pre-Civil War era, but also in the names
of its newly formed towns: Sparta, Ithaca,
Athens and Attica.

The Grecian temple (Figure 7) provided the
model for the Greek Revival style, the first in
a series of nineteenth century styles based on
historical precedents, Its triangular front pedi-
ment and columned portico were frequently
copied for rcsidcntiar designs, although the
temple’s low roof was often modified to re-
flect the relatively steep slopes that were
then common in American houses.

The temple form necessitated a rearrange-
ment of the traditional orientation of the
house so that its narrow side faced the street.
The main entrance was often, but not always,
shifted to the edge of the facade and opened
into a hall that ran along the side of the build-
ing. These two changes produced the front
gailed sidehall house plan that remained in
vogue for the rest of the century.

The column, with its three styles of capitals
and surmounting entablature (Figure 8)

was a favored form of ornament in the Greek
Revival period. Both column and capital were
often supplied by large lumber companies
rather than handmade by the local carpenter.
A less expensive version of the column, the
pilaster, could be easily constructed by nail-
ing wide vertical boards to corners and door
frames and tacking on a few mouldings to
suggest a capital. Similarly, a series of flat
boards could be used to reproduce the classi-
cal entablature at the doorway and roofline.

The fashion for Greek Revival house designs
peaked in Newton during the mid 1840's.
As both Newton Highlands and Waban were
as yet undeveloped, few residences were
butlt in the style.

Entablature

Figure 7. The Parthenon (438 B.C.)
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GREEK REVIVAL 1830-1860

Figure 8. The Classical Orders
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The Grecian Temple form with its row of
porch columns was used for more elaborate
Greek Revival style residences. An ambitious,
well-preserved temple form house is the Fred-
eric A. Collins house at 1734 Beacon Street,
Waban (1847, Figure 9). The structure owes
its inspiration to the Allen C. Curtis house,
now the Pillar House Restaurant, built in
1845 by local housewright William Lyon.
The Collins house was constructed in the
lonic Order, readily identifiable by its
columns with graceful, curved volutes. The
two-story, lonic colonnade supports a tall
entablature. Compared with the shallow
slopes of the Greek models, the roof of this

residence takes on a much stee rofile.
The facade of the residence is IP with
flush cladding in an attempt to LmuIate the
masonry construction of the Greek originals.
Its side entrance allowed for a traditional
center hall room arrangement.

The William Hyde House at 22 Hyde Street,
Newton Highlands (1848-1851, Figure 10)
is a more modest local interpretation, Doric
pilasters, a typical motif of the Greek Revi-
val period, fyamc the corners of the building,
A three-part entablature, an important fea-
ture, forms a continuous band on the main
part of the house.

Figure 9. Waban: 1734 Beacon Street, 1847

-

A

Figure 10. Newton nghhnds 22 H}rde Street, 1848-1851
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The Middle Ages provided another source
for nineteenth century house styles. Small,
vaguely Gothic garden structures began to
appear on English country estates in the late
1700’s, and by the early nineteenth century,
medieval designs had been introduced for
elaborate residences. The pointed arches,
stained glass, and soaring towers of medieval
cathedrals were suitable for churches, but
the Gothic influence was more tenuous in
domestic architecture. Confined to a few
specifically medieval details, Gothic Revival
house design, especially in this country, was
more clﬂsj; connected with the fanciful
garden cottages of the late eighteenth cen-
tury than the monuments of the medieval
period.

The American public had acquired an inte-
rest in the Middle Ages through popular his-
torical novels with medieval settings such as
Sir Walter Scott’s Waverley series. It was not,
however, until a landscape designer named
Alexander Jackson Downing promoted the
Gothic Revival style that this interest was
focused on “medieval” architecture. In his
popular book The Architecture of Country
Houses, Downing described the picturesque
Gothic style: “It must not look all new and
sunny, but show secluded shadowy corners.
There must be nooks about it, where one
would love to linger; windows where one
can Enju{. the Bluiet landscape leisurely; cozy
rooms where all domestic fireside joys are
invited to dwell.” Downing's wide.]y read
articles and books were accompanied by
sample house designs and plans for pictur-
esque suburban cottages and country estates.

The Gothic Revival style, characterized by
wings that projected in several directions,
complex roofs, and ornate wooden detail,
marked a departure from the compact house
forms, restrained decoration, and rules of
symmetry imposed in classical styles such as
the Grcelz Revival. It initiated the pictur-
esque fashion which was to encompass sev-
eral distinct Victorian architectural styles.

Newton Highlands' and Waban’s commuter
population may have admired the pictur-
esque styles, but usually preferred less
dramatic, though still ostentatious versions
for their own residences. The well preserved
residence at 68 Hartford Street, Newton
Highlands, is one of very few local examples.

Figure 11.

Newton Highlands:
68 Hartford Street,
1876
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The design of this residence is adapted from
pattern books that depict stone Gothic cot-
tages. Since stone carving was rather expen-
sive, the structure’s wall surface is clad to
look like stone. Board and batten siding in
the gable fields, typical of carpenter Gothic
versions, adds textural contrast to the wall
surface. A tall corner tower, projected above
the roofline, enhances the structure’s verti-
cality. Its steeply pitched dormers are roman-
ticized with triangular peaked windows and
pinnacles at the roof. The house displays a
modest amount of “inch-board finery”
condemned by contemporary critics of
picturesque architecture. The newly invent-
ed scroll saw, a machine similar to the mod-
ern jig saw, allowed local saw mills and
carpentry shops to imducc thousands of
board feet of gingerbread trim. (Figure 11).

The residence was built in 1876 by Charles
C. Pottle, a local builder who was active in
the area during the 1870's and 1880’s. He
also built the residences at 82 Hyde Street
and 284 Lake Avenue, which are similarly
styled.

A modest variation of the style, the Gothic
cottage, is typified by the residence at 66
Forest Street (1871-1874, Figure 12). The
cross-gabled roof establishes a strong vertical
emphasis in the design of this house. The tall,
narrow paired windows capped with segmen-
tal mouldings that are decorated with sawn
ornament reinforce this vertical theme. The
clapboarded walls and lack of “‘inch-board
finery” demonstrate the lasting influence of
the austere Greek Revival style among

village buildings and home buyers.

Figure 12, Newton Highlands:
66 Forest Street, 1871-1874
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The historical origins of the Italianate style
can be traced to the rural architecture DF
northern Italy, The style was first introduced
in England, again under the impetus for pic-
turesque house designs. Its popularity was
probably related to a contemporary interest
in seventeenth century landscape paintings,
many of which illustrated romantic Italian

country villas.

The Italianate style arrived in this country
during the early 1840’s. Under various names
im:lmfing the Tuscan, Lombard, Bracketed,
and Italian Villa styles, it was promoted by
Andrew Jackson Downing and his contem-
poraries as an appropriate style for a scenic
rural landscape.

Newton Highlands’ first suburban villagers
favored the Italianate style, and it enjoyed

a long period of popularity thar lasted until
the mid 1880’s, so thar the village has many
examples. The style was suitable for elabo-
rate houses as well as for inexpensive cot-
tages. Unlike the more complex Gothic Re-
vival, the Italianate could be readily adapted
by local carpenters by adding rows of brack-
ets to the already familiar front and end
gabled house forms. The narrow rounded
arched windows were also a common feature
of the Italianate style. They often appeared
in pairs, outlined by prominent mouldings
that trace the curving upper profile of the
arch. Inexpensive architecutral elements such

Figure 13. Newton Highlands: 111 Clark Street, 1879 :' '

as brackets, and turned balusters appeared
in a variety of profiles.

The residence at 111 Clark Street (1879,
Figure 13) contains many features common-
H’ found on the village's Italianate style resi-
ences. The design breaks from the tradi-
tional flank gable house form with the addi-
tion of an ornamental central gable, A pair
of interior end chimneys is located at the
roof’s ridge line. The gable roof features a
Eru'ecting cornice with short gable returns,
oth supported by paired brackets. The
circular window, though distinctly Medieval,
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Figure 14. Newton Highlands: 230 Winchester Street, 1873

and the imircd bays on the gable ends, were
popular local Italianate motifs.

An unusual variation of the Italianate style
is the Italian Villa. Newton Highlands' text-
book example is the Italian Villa at 230 Win-
chester Street (1873, Figure 14). Charming-
ly picturesque in effect, the house has two
wings punctuated by a central tower which
has a distinctive, slate bell-cast roof. The
tower is embellished in the standard Italian-
ate fashion. It has narrow round arched win-
dows and scroll sawn brackets at the eaves.
The irregular massing and silhouette of this
design is similar to that of the Gothic Revi-
val style.
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Though the names [talian Villa and Tuscan
Villa were often used interchangeably, the
Tuscan Villa was a symmetrical cube with
academic or classicaﬂ}r derived detail. The
Tuscan Villa at 122 Lincoln Street (1871-
1873, Figure 15) illustrates this distinction.
Its formal balance, established by the central
Elacr:mcnt of the entrance portico flanked

y polygonal bays and crowned by a cupola,
is typically Tuscan. In all other features:
round-headed windows, bays, the cupola
itself, the low-hipped roof, extended eaves,
and the ornamental brackets, the ltalianate
influence is strongly felt.

Figure 15. Newton Highlands: 122 Lincoln Street, 1871-1873




Regardless of the derivation of a building’s
decorative ornament, it is Mansard in sqﬁu

if it has a mansard roof. Essentially a hybrid
form, the style borrowed round arched win-
dows, bracketing, boxed porch posts and its
interior floor plans from the Italianate seyle.

The mansard roof was imported from France
where it had a major revival in the mid-nine-
teenth century. Named for Francois Mansart,

a seventeenth century architect, “*la mansarde”

derived from a provincial French roof form.
(The word itself has come to mean attic in
France.) The mansard reappeared during the
Second Empire under Napoleon 111 (1852-
1870) when it was used in the enlargement
of the Louvre palace during the 1850's. In
this country the Mansard style was often re-
ferred to as “Second Empire,” a designation
that applied primarily to Inunument:ﬁ"strucv
tures uF the 1860’s and 1870's, such as Bos-
ton’s old City Hall. Many mansard roofed
public buildings were erected during the post
Civil War administration of Ulysses S. Grant,
giving rise to another name for the style, the
“General Grant.”

In residential architecture, the Mansard style
enjoyed wide popularity in suburban com-
munities such as Newton Highlands. Local
builders adopted the new roof in the early
1860’s and continued to build Mansard style
residences until the mid 1880's. The man-
sard roof was appreciated by the Victorian
public as a new, distinctive E}rm but its chief

Figure 16. Newton Highlands: 43 Floral Street, 1873

appeal lay in its practicality. The roof's
height allowed more headroom in the attic,
adding an extra usable floor to many build-
ings. In some instances, a new mansard roof
was added to an older house for this specific
purpose.

The Mansard style was used in a variety of
house types in Newton Highlands from
tDWEI‘EJl’CSidEI‘ICES like that at 335 Lake
Avenue (1873) to simpler cottages found
on Columbus and Forest Streets. A pro-
nounced curve to the lower roof slope and
segmental shaped dormers was a popular
combination for Mansard houses built
around the time of the Civil War. The large
residence at 43 Floral Street (1873, Figure
16) was owned by Winfield 8. Richards,
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Figure 17. Newton Highlands:
450 Winchester Street, c. 1865

a railroad expressman. The columned
verandah appears to date from a later alter-
ation. A carriage barn, constructed to the
rear of this residence, has been extensively
altered. Although livery stables were oper-
ated in each vilﬁlge, carriage barns remained
in vogue in Newton throughout the Victo-
rian era.

A unique variation of the style is the large,
square residence at 450 Winchester Street,
Newton Highlands (c. 1865, Figure 17). The

mansard roof’s lower slope contains gabled
dormers with round arched windows. Above
the dormers, a curb cornice emphasizes the
intersection of the mansard’s two slopes, The
symmetrical design of the residence is empha-
sized by floor-to-ceiling, round arched win-
dows ﬂ);nking the central entrance. The
scroll saw is very much in evidence in this
house, providing the ornate trim for its eaves
and verandah, including the exquisite cable
moulded posts, a Romanesque moulding
imitative of a twisted cord.
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The Stick style is a more picturesque contem-
porary of the Mansard and Italianate styles.
In keeping with the conservative taste of
Newton Highlands’ Victorian papulation, it
enjoyed less popularity in the vilf'ag:: than

the latter styles. The Stick style’s steep gab-
led roofs, decorated wall surfaces, barge-
boards and multi-wing plans were an exten-
sion of the Gothic Revival, another style

that found little favor in Newton Highlands.

The central feature of the Stick style is a net-
work of thin, flat boards applied over a clap-
board wall. Stickwork, as this decorative sys-
tem is called, is laid in a pattern of horizon-
tals, verticals and diagonals that suggests the
building’s interior framing, although it serves
no structural function. Thus, wall areas are
given a new visual importance; they are re-
cognized as a design element with the poten-
tial for energetic articulation. This theme
was taken to its inventive extreme during
the ensuing Queen Anne period.

The sophisticated Stick style residence at
173 Lincoln Street (1876, Figure 18) ranks
among Newton Highlands finest Victorian
era residences. Its vertically proportioned,
angular design is emphasized by a stee

gable roof, projecting eaves, and bm’gﬂﬂnm’ds.
Utilized as ornament, the rafter ends at the
eaves are left exposed. The interesting stick-
work in the gab]i:: is accented by both diago-
nal flush board and picket style paneling,

Figure 18. Newton Highlands: 173 Lincoln Street, 1876

characteristic Stick style features, In most
Newton Highlands residences, this stickwork
was confined to simple horizontal bands

that crossed at each floor level and at the
tops and sills of window frames. The poly-
gonal bays are distinctively detailed with
exposed rafters, picket valances, and cross

work paneling,
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—_——
QUEEN ANNE 1875-1910

The energy and inventiveness of the Queen
Anne sryﬁ gave full expression to the pic-
turesque forms that had been an undercur-
rent in American architecture beginning in
the 1840's. Most often, Queen Anne designs
were ecclectic, drawing from several sources
for inspiration. For models, architects relied
on contemporary British decorative arts,
medieval cottages and town houses, and,
toward the cncF of the style’s popularity,
American colonial architecture.

The style’s name was coined in England to
describe a series of quasi-medieval manor
houses built in the mid-1800's, and was
taken with no discernible logic from the
reign of Queen Anne (1702-1714). It re-
ceived widespread publicity in this country
at the 1876 Centennial Exposition in Phila-
delphia through the popular British pavil-
ions, whose Queen Anne design caught the
imagination of the American public. Archi-
tectural pattern books featuring the Queen
Anne style were rushed into print, and with-
in four years after the Centennial many new
suburban homes appeared with all the trap-
pings of the latest fashion.

Queen Anne style houses are not compact.
Rooms spill outward from a central core in
no set pattern, exterior walls project at sev-
eral intervals, and the roofline is correspond-
ingly complex. Artached are all manner of
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porches, balconies and bay windows. Design-
ners in this period played on the contrast of
materials as well as forms. It is not unusual
to find brick, stone, clapboards, plain or
patterned wood shingles, stucco, and intri-
cate moulded plaster or clay panels within

a single house.

The Queen Anne style made its first appear-
ance in Newton Highlands in the late 18705
and reached the height of its popularity a
decade later. Local versions of the style range
from the inexpensive sidehall plan houses
such as 1 and 3 Bowdoin Street (both 1885)
to comfortable builder designed residences
that appear on Lincoln, Hartford, Chester
and Walnut Streets. In its simplest expres-
sion, the style’s ornate trim is reduced to a
front porch with curving posts and a wall
surface divided between clapboards and pat-
terned shingles.

There is remarkable variety in the designs for
Newton Highlands’ Queen Anne houses for
the 1880’s and 1890’s, especially in their
ornamental details. These incIucE: long front
porches with turned supports and ornate
railings, textured walls of clapboards and
shingﬁs, complex rooflines with several dor-
mers and gable-roofed projections, and tow-
ers which provide the E{;ca] point for what
sometimes seems a confusing array of shapes
and forms.



Buile in 1886, the residence at 93 Hillside
Road, Newton Highlands (Figure 19) dis-
plays a rich variety of surface trim that is
a characteristic of Queen Anne design.
Particularly notable are its ornate frontis-
piece, entrance porch with spindle-turned
posts (since replaced with ones of Colonial
Revival design), corner tower with bellcast
roof and finial, and Queen Anne style sash
windows (small panes encircling a large cen-
tral pane) visible on the first story. Several
variations of this design can be found on
Lincoln Street.

Toward the end of the nineteenth century,
the Queen Anne style’s exuberance was
toned down as designers worked more close-
ly from Medieval models, particularly the
townhouses in the English Tudor period of
the sixteenth century. In this late period,
projections were pulled in and walls stripped
of balconies and towers, resulting in a quiet
facade relieved by a series of balanced,
secondary roofs, and a simplified porch.
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Figure 19. Newton Highlands:
93 Hillside Road, 1886



Figure 20. Waban: 102 Windsor Road, 1888

H. Langford Warren was well-known for his
Medieval Revival style architecture which he
introduced to Waban with designs such as
that of 102 Windsor Road (1888, Figure 20).
The architect worked in close association
with Henry Hobson Richardson, and was
strongly influenced by his work. Several
architectural features of this picturesque
villa, the steep gables, overhanging projec-
tions, small paned sash windows and oriels
are recognizably Medieval. The plainer, shin-
gled wall surface of the Medieval Revival was
more often the rule in Waban and there are
many fine examples: 1545 Beacon Street
(1896), 58 Plainfield Street (1897), and 203
Windsor Road (1897).

Half-timbering, which has intersecting wall
boards over a plaster or wooden surface, was
introduced during this later phase, The resi-
dence at 25 Pine Ridge Rums: Waban (Fig-
ure 21) is an exceptional example. Built in
1906, the heavier scale of half-timbering is
typical of later, more architecturally correct
Medieval Revival adaptations. The clay tile
roof with coping at IEE ridge, casement
windows with diamond sash panes, and the
Tudor arched entrance and side porches are
important features, Double and triple win-
dows, common in the late century, increase
the amount of light to interior rooms.

Figure 21. Waban: 25 Pine Ridge Road, 1906
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The Shin%le style evolved from the Queen
Anne style and shares with it an informal
appearance and freedom in the arrangement
of its interior spaces. The first truly Ameri-
can style, it developed from the early, ram-
bling farmhouses of the New England region.
The barn-like gambrel roof that character-
ized many of these buildings became a popu-
lar feature of the Shingle style, which also
adopted more formal aspects of eighteenth
century colonial architecture, such as the
columned porch.

The hallmark of the Shingle style is the use
of natural or brown stained wooden shingles
as a wall covering, The style was popular in
New England seacoast resorts, where shin-
gled waﬁs, often used with rough surfaced
stone, were particularly suited to the seaside
air and rocky maritime scenery. Shingling
not only covered the walls of these houses,
but often the roof, porch posts, bracketing
and curving sides uIPthe window openings as
well. Although the style often incorporated
the circular towers and long front porches of
the Queen Anne period, its uniform shingled
wall texture gave these houses a quieter,
more restful appearance. Decorative detail
was generally confined to porch columns,
bay windows, large dormers and groupings
of recessed windows.

The Shingle style gained wide popularity in
suburban settings. It was introduced in New-
ton Highlands and Waban during the late
1880's, and was used primarily for ambitious
middle and upper class housing, It was rarely
used in modest dwellings erected to stock

plans by local builders.

Wood shingled houses appear on Lake Ave-
nue, Walnut Street, Lakewood Road and
Norman Road in Newton Highlands during
the 1890's. Many, however, were complex,
irregular designs more closely tied to the
Queen Anne style. More typical of the quiet
effect conveyed by the Shingle style is 31is

house at 48 Windsor Road (1887, Figure 22).

The residence is contained under a pair of
broad gambrel roofs which encompass two
floors of living space. The continuous ex-

anse of wall surface is broken only by shal-
ow projections and small-paned windows
that appear in pairs, and tripled.
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Figure 22, Waban: 48 Windso
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COLONIAL REVIVAL 1890-1910

After the Centennial year, American archi-
tects began to examine their own heritage.
The first result of this interest became appar-
ent in designs for Shingle style buildings. As
the decade of the eighties drew to a close,

the preoccupation with early American archi-
tecture coalesced into a full-fledged style, the
Colonial Revival. The style represented a re-
turn to historical pracedyf'rnts or architectur-
al design, with the important difference that
the original models were copied more faith-
fully than had been the case with the evoca-
tive, picturesque styles of the mid-nineteenth
century.

The Colonial Revival, however, borrowed
freely from several phases of eighteenth cen-
tury architecture and from the post colonial

e
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Federal style as well. Long schooled to ad-
mire the picturesque, American homeown-
ers were unwilling to accept a copy of the
pristine, austere houses of the early 1700’s
and demanded versions of later, more elabo-
rate eighteenth century house designs. With
mill-work machines close at hand, Colonial
Revival builders could easily trim the new
style with the same profusion of detail that
had characterized earlier Victorian styles.
The scale of the buildings was also altered
to reflect the accepted notion of the appro-
Eriate size for a comfortable house, which
y modern standards seems unusually large.
Thus the narrow fanlight doorway of the
Federal period was greatly expanded to ac-

commodate the grand entrance of the
Colonial Revival house.

Colonial Revival ornament began appearing
in Queen Anne designs in the 1880°s and re-
sulted in many hybrid forms such as the
eclectic residence at 111 Lincoln Street,
Newton Highlands (1886-1888, Figure 23).
Colonial Revival ornament was also used for
the porch and window areas of Shingle style
rﬂsic?ences. Basically classical in derivation,
the ornament included large pilasters, col-
umns, oval windows from the Federal period,
elaborate eaves, mouldings, railings, urns,
and Palladian windows, an eighteenth cen-
tury motif using an arched central window
flanked by two narrower openings.

e “‘ﬂ Figure 23, Newton Highlands: 111 Lincoln Street, 1886-1888



The Colonial Revival style was popular in
many of Newton’s villages, including both
Waban and Newton Highlands where there
are many %ood examples of the style. The
typical Colonial Revival house has a boxy
self-contained shape usually capped by a hip
roof, although the gable and gambrel forms
were also used. The rules of symmetry were
usually observed on the street facade which
was often ornamented with a columned
porch. The residence at 170 Lincoln Street,
Newton Highlands (1896, Figure 24) is an
impressive Colonial Revival mansion and is
virtually a catalog of classical ornament. The

columned front porch, popular on less expen-
sive versions of the style, is replaced by a
semi-circular portico with fluted, Corinthian
columns. The central entrance with its ellipri-
cal fan and leaded sidelights is derived from
the Federal period. Fluted pilasters with
Roman lonic capitals frame the corners of
the residence and are surmounted by an en-
tablature enriched with a denticular cornice,
bead moulding, and comma brackets. The
house is contained under a truncated hip
roof which features a series of pedimented
dormers.
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Figure 24. Newton Highlands: 170 Lincoln Street, 1896



GUIDE TO HOUSE FORMS,
REMODELING, REPAIRING

The overall form of a house is most often
expressed in the simple geometry of a
[Eftﬂngﬂlﬂ.r ar SEIUH.I—E blnck,

frontispiece bay windo
Another method of arriving at a more
involved house form is to add shallow
projections such as a center frontispiece
or bay windows to the main block. These
are placed symmetrically in the example.

This basic shape can be made more complex
by adding a secondary form, or wing, to the \
sides or back of the house.

By the mid-1800's houses were designed
with asymmetrical forms of varying sizes
and shapes. Favored in the Victorian period,
these complex designs were called *““pictur-
esque” because of their irregular, dramatic
silhouettes.

When there is more than a single wing, the
arrangement of forms can be symmetrical,
with balancing wings on either side of the
main block.



PLANS

A plan is essentially a map of a building, drawn looking from above as if the walls had been
sliced through. It shows the arragnement of the rooms, the location of the stairway and hall,
and the placement of the doors and windows.

window

I. -

In general, boxy buildings with geometrical

shapes will have simple plans. Shown above

is a typical first-floor room arrangement for

houses of this type. This plan is symmetrical, The side-hall plan was adopted for the long,

with a central hall and rooms on each side. narrow houses of the mid-1800s, Because
of the short front walls in these buildings,
the stairhall was moved from a center posi-
tion to the side, with the two main first-floor
rooms placed back-to-back.

In picturesque designs, and in large complex
buiﬁ)dings, room shape and size varies and the
interior spaces follow a complicated, asym-
metrical pattern. The internal room divisions
can rarely be guessed from looking at the
exterior and it is easier to become lost once
inside.
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End-gabled

i

Steep hip roof

ROOFS

Front-gabled

Low hip roof

Five roof types were standard in the nineteenth century: gable, jerkin, gambrel, hip and
mansard. Wood shingles had been the most common roof covering early in the 1800's, but

by mid-century slate came into general use.

GABLE ROOFS

Popular throughout the nineteenth century
:mtl';I very common, the gable roof has two
slopes that meet at a peak and a gable at each
en&:: The position of the gables is of major
importance to a building’s design. If the gable
appears at the sides of a house, it is said to be

end-gabled.
Front-gabled houses had a quite different

appearance. They were used frequently with
t}I:e side-hall plan.

HIP ROOFS

The hip roof has four
slopes and no gables.

It was used in the earl
1800’s and reappeare

at the end of the century.

The proportions as well as the form of a roof
can change the character of a house. A pro-
minent, steep roof will dominate a design,
just as a low roof can assume much less im-

portance in relation to the rest of the building.

MANSARD ROOF

A two-part hip roof,
the mansard often has
curving slopes. Its hey-
day was between 1860
and 1880, during the
so-called Mansard style.
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JERKIN ROOF jerkin
The jerkin roof is

closely related to the

gable form, but has a
triangular, backward

slanting front and rear slope.

GAMBREL ROOF
Barnlike in shape, the
gambrel roof has two
slopes, broken into
double sections, and
gables. It was popular
during the late 1800,

gable

The complexity of a roof corresponds to the
grouping of forms in the body of the house.
AIiCturesque house with a complex plan
will also have a complex roofline. Decorative
gables, or large triangular areas similar to the
ends of a two-sloped roof, and dormers can
add to the complexity of the roof shape.



The ratio of solids to voids, or the extent of
the blank, neutral wall area between the
punched-in window openings, makes a differ-
ence in the appearance of a house.

1

|

modern
In the example 2/2 sash sash
E‘nght:l'- tgﬂm el [:l [l[] Windows in the nineteenth century held
it standard sizes of glass, kept in place by
groupec S-}??mﬂ!ﬂh narrow strips of wood, or sash bars. Unil
cally on either side ) the 1840’s six panes in each section of the
of the door. The number of windows allows window were used (6/6 sash), with 2/2
for only a small section of wall space between Aivtiiin catil thaend ot the Sidciaarit
sach opening century, when modern 1/1 sash was intro-

duced. The number of sash bars and win-
dow panes makes an impact on the overall
effect of the design, as can be seen in the

e —— I contrast between the 2/2 sash of the mid-

arrangement of two
windows on one side,
with a single window

ﬂanking the door, illustrates a variation in
window/wall ratio that produces a quite | | | | | | |
different effect.

round-arched Palladian  Gothic  pointed

1800's and the modern undivided window
with plate glass.

In the nineteenth century windows assumed
several shapes in addition to the standard
rectangular form. Often displayed in a pro-
minent position, such as above the main en-
trance, these windows were an important
decorative feature. They were used sparing-
ly because of the time and expense involved
in special framing for the opening and in
cutting the glass.

the appearance of a

building's facade. In

this illuseracion, the

window at the right assumes much more
importance in this design because its
opening is larger,

Size can also govern I

53

_—
WALLS AND OPENINGS



e
ORNAMENTS

cornice defines
rooltog

cornice where
roof meets walls

Ornament is an essential part of a building's design, not just an afterthought. The type and
amount of trim was dictated by a building’s architectural style, as well as by its cost, size

and pretensions.

Ornament can be used in several
ways. For example, it defines the
meeting points between the walls,
roof area and openings. Decorative
trim at these key locations includes
the cornice at the eaves, corner-
boards and mouldings at the doors
and windows.

cornerboards mouldings out-

define edge

line openings

cornice

Decoration is also concentrated at
a building’s most important design
features. As an extension of the
facade, the porch played an essen-
tial role in nineteenth century
houses, as well as in the lifestyle

ch usters

I of their occupants. In modest

houses the porch often received
the {.ml*:,.r disp]ay of fanc}r wooden
detail. Porches were usually orna-
mented with curving posts, wood-
en arches, and railings with rows
of balusters.

Ornate trim was often applied as
the final, individualistic signature
to a design. This ornament is what
sets nineteenth century architec-
ture apart from the modern tract
house. Common forms are barge-
boards, or narrow decorative

brackets \mdﬂ.w caps

borders along the roof caves,
brackets, and window caps.
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Decorative wall coverings were sometimes ap-
plied to the exterior of a building to enliven
this essentially neutral area. The repetitive
rows of clapboards perform this function to
some extent, but elaborate decoration such
as patterned wood shingles, long flat boards
laid in various designs (stickwork) and verti-
cal board-and-batten siding play a more cru-
cial role in the design.

In slate-covered roofs the individual slates
were cut into decorative shapes and laid in
intricate patterns, in much the same manner
as wood shingles. Patterned slate became
common feature of the mansard roof and
sometimes appeared in several colors.

SUMMARY

The selective, deliberate process of combin-
ing materials, forms, proportions and decora-
tion produced an architectural statement that
reflected a building’s times, its occupants

and its designer. Easily perceived at the time
the house was built, this composite message
is often not as clear to its modern readers.



Remodeling or repairing an older house re-
quires a great dearof care and should respect
the basic principles that went into its design.
Home Improvement and Repair Standards,

a guide published by the Newton Planning
and Development Department and the New-
ton Upper Falls Historic District Commis-
sion, offers extensive advice for remodeling
older homes.

In general, original materials should be con-
served wherever possible. Often selective
patchwork will serve perfectly well, espe-
cially in the case of decorative trim, deter-
iorated shingles or broken slates.

Let the original building material be the
guide in s.eE:lcting replacement parts, Wood
was used in the vast majority of older
houses. It has special properties entirely dif-
ferent from brick, composition stone, shiny
metals and synthetics.

Windows

The number of windows, as well as their
dimensions, sets up a deliberate, balanced
juxtaposition of openings and solid wall
areas, which should be retained, at least on
the front part of the house. The size of the
panes and sash bar divisions of nineteenth
century windows also makes an impact on

the overall effect of the design.

Walls

The type of wall covering is important to a
building’s appearance. Clipbuards, the most
I:u:. ular choice of the nineteenth century,
had a thin, three- to five-inch exposure.
When laid in a repetitive horizontal pattern,
the clapboards established a specific texture
to the wall surface. Eight-inch sizes of alumi-
num and vinyl synthetic siding destroy this
rhythm, alter the wall texture and signifi-
cantly change the character of the house.
Woo shingﬁ:s give a building an informal
appearance, especially when they are
stained rather than painted. Patterned
shingles and decorative stickwork were
applied as part of a complex design scheme

and should be kept if at all possible.
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Decorative Trim

Mouldings and other trim that outline the
openings, corners, and roof areas of the
house are absolutely essential to a building’s
character. Small-scale trim like brackets and
“gingerbread” sets a particular house apart
from its neighbors and as such, is rarely an
expendable part of the design. This ornamen-
tal detail was particularly important in the
Victorian period.

Color

Color and style were closely tied in nine-
teenth century architecture. Historically,
early nineteenth century houses were paint-
ed white with dark shutters; later houses
(1840-1890) had strong but dusky colors
(dark red and green-/grey/olive/tan and
ochre) and contrasting trim in lighter or
darker tones. Large ornate buildings of the
1880’s were painted with up to eight dif-
ferent colors. During the last decade of the
nineteenth century, pastel shades (beige/
light yellow/light green/light blue) with
dark shutter colors and white trim came
into vogue.

Repainting a nineteenth century house in

an appropriate color scheme may pay large
dividends by immediately recapturing its
original character. To assist interested home-
owners in choosing paint, a guide titled Paint
Colors for Newton’s Victorian Homes is
available for reference at the Jackson Home-
stead, Newton’s historical house museum.
The guide, based on a pamphlet prepared by
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the Cambridge Historical Commission, iden-
tifies the various nineteenth century archi-
tectural styles and lists color combinations
appropriate for each. Pattern books and
manufacturer’s publications of the period
form the basis for the recommended combi-
nations. The guide is illustrated with paint
chips and representative houses of each style.

One general rule with regard to color is that
dark-shaded materials emphasize the roof
area of the house, while light or variegated
asphalt shingles tend to make the roof disap-
pear. In all architectural styles after 1840,
the roof was meant to play a prominent role
and therefore should be dark in color.
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